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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the charitable
company for the period ending 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report and
a directors’ report under company law.

The Trust currently operates 2 special schools. One is primary (ages 4-11 years) and the other is secondary (ages 11
to 19 years). The total number of pupils in these schools is 410 in 2023/2024. However, it should be noted that the pupil
numbers in both these schools is expected to continue to rise over the next few years.

In addition the Trust also operates a Woodbridge SEND Service which provides Outreach support to all schools in the
Borough of Bolton. This service is commissioned by the Local Authority on a Service Level agreement and we currently
have direct contact with over 1000 pupils (aged 2-19 years).

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and
articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy Trust as incorporated on 26 August 2018,
There was no trading activity until the official formation of the academy Trust by the Department for Education on 1
October 2018. The Truslees of the Woodbridge Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Woodbridge Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 2.
Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debits and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' Indemnities
There are no third party indemnity provisions
Method of Recruitment and Appocintment or Election of Trustees

The company Articles of Association provide that Foundation Members will appoint no fewer than 5 Trustees (Article
50), however they are not to be subject to any maximum. Trustees are appointed for a term of 4 years and subject to
remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elected at a general meeting.

The Articles allow parent Trustee representation and the structure of Woodbridge Trust is such that each school in the
Trust operates with a Quality of Education Commiiltee.

Practically when seeking new appoiniments, Trustees are assessed initially by invitation, dependent on their expertise,
experience and skills, prior fo a process of recruitment and appointment in which rigorous interview selection, collection
of references and checks through the DBS system are al{ collated.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and training of Trustees

New Trustees are interviewed and selected for the board to maintain robust governance and oversight throughout the
Trust. On all occasions, Trustees are fully inducted into the business of the Trust to provide a clear understanding of
their role and responsibilities as a Trustee along with the understanding of detailed policies and procedures underpinning
the Trusts governance arrangements. Trustees are provided with appropriate training opportunities and regular skills
audits are undertaken to ensure a breadth and balance of expertise is available to the Board.

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, the stralegic direction and the growth of the Trust, adopting an
annual plan and budget, monitoring the Trust and its schools by the use of financial management and other performance
information, making appointments to the Executive Leadership Team and presenting the Annual report and Financial
Statements for approval by the Members.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

The Chief Executive Officer {CEOQ) is the Accounting Officer. Operational management of the Trust is delegated to the
Executive Leadership Team {ELT). The ELT consists of the CEQ, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Teaching &
Learning and Director of External Partnerships.

These managers control the Trust and Schools / Service at an execulive level implementing the policies laid down by
the Trustees and reporting to them. The ELT further delegates responsibilities to the Senior Leadership team of each
School / Service.

The SLT as appropriate to each School / Service, consists of the Head of School, Deputy Head teacher, and Assistant
Head teachers. The SLT is responsible for the authorisation of spending within delegated and agreed budgets including
the appointment of staff.

Appointments to the ELT will always be made by a board of Trustees. Some spending control is delegated to individual
members of the ELT within agreed limits as specified in the Scheme of Delegation.

The leadership and management of the Schools / Service is carried out by the ELT, the SLT at each school /Service,
middle leaders and business support managers. These leaders are responsible for the operational business and
principal activities of the Schools / Service in the Trust, in particular organising staff, facilities and pupils.

The Trustees meet at least 3 times a year. Local Quality of Education Committees and Statutory Commiltees of the
Trust meet at least on a termly basis. Trustees make regular visits to schools and service they attend events and
functions and are seen as key advocates of the work of the Trust, Trustees are represented on the School Advisory
Committees alongside the wider representation these committees include.

The Scheme of Delegation clearly sets out and defines the responsibilities of Members, Trustees, School Advisory
Committees and Senior Leaders.

Arrangements setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the ELT, Heads of School and olher Senior Leadership team members of each school / service is
set in accordance with the Trust Pay policy and the DIE pay and conditions documents for teachers and leaders.
Thorough, rigorous performance management of the executive and senior leadership personnel takes place on an
annual basis. The Trust Pay Committee for the ELT, Heads of School and other senior leaders reviews
recommendations for their pay progression and other remuneration (if appropriate). The Trust Pay commitlee consists
of at least 2 Trustees and the CEO and CFO.

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 the Woodbridge
Trust is obliged, as an employer of sufficient size, to report information included in Schedule 2 of the Regulations in
relation to

+ Number of FTE employees who were relevant union officials under the definition

* Percentage time spent by relevant union officials spent on union facilities time

¢ Percentage of paybill spent on union facilities time

« Time spent on trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours.

The Trust did not employ any union officials engaged in frade union facilities time during the period ending 315t August
2024 and as such incurred no costs associated with the Trade Union Facility time for union officials employed in local
authority area within which the Trust operates. The Trust is committed to working positively with the unions that represent
the Trust employees namely NAHT, ASCL, NEU, NASUWT, and Unison.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Woodbridge Trust requires Trustees and others with a governing responsibility to complete a full disclosure of interests
and other posts held. Individuals are requested annually, to review and update their interests in the registers.

The individual members and Trustees hold a variety of business interests, directorships and Trusteeships in their
organisations including other educational establishments. A full list of related party connections of the individuals can
be found on the Woodbridge Trust website.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Heather Scott a member and chair of Trustees is also a director of Woodbridge College, a post 19 establishment for
young adults with special educational needs, along with Sally McFariane (Member at Woodbridge Trust) and Jennifer
Moore (CFO).

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Woodbridge Trust is proud to be an Equal Opportunity employer. We give full and fair consideration to the applications
for employment made by disabled persons, having regard fo their particular aptitude and abilities. The Trust is
responsive to changes to an employee's individual circumstances through becoming disabled which includes making
appropriate adjustments to working conditions. All employees of the Trust including those with a disability can expect lo
be afforded development and career progression that befits their skilis and expertise.

All employees of the Trust have access to a 24/7, 365 days a year independent employee assistance program which
offers confidential independent help, information and guidance on a wide range of topics. In addition, employees also
have access to a live chat option, where they can speak to a counsellor on line

The Trust acknowledges the trade unions that represent its employees and seeks to consult appropriately on all matters
affecting employment by the Trust

All settings within the Trust are signed up to the DfE Education Staff Wellbeing Charter to demonstrate the Trust
commilment to protect, promote and enhance the welibeing of staff.

The Trust actively promotes and encourages continuous professional learning and development. The- Trust funds
membership of The National College, providing staff with access fo online statutory training and expert-led courses,
webinars and podcasts. The Trust utilises the apprenticeship levy to support staff in gaining further professional
qualifications, including supporting staff through trainee teacher apprenticeships

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

Woodbridge Trust gives fuli and fair consideration to all stakeholders we deal with from suppliers and customers to the
wider community. Relationships with suppliers are entered into based upon not only the financial implications for the
Trust but also the quality aspects to ensure that as a Trust we always seek value for money. Relationships are harboured
through regular contact and we have an approved supplier list which is reviewed at least annually. Relationships with
other stakeholders including other educational institutions, Local Authority, Healthcare providers are harboured and
maintained to ensure maximum benefit to both parties and ultimately to ensure the successful outcomes for all our
students.

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

The principal objective and activity of the charitable company is the operation of schools and SEND Service to provide
high quality education for pupils aged 2 — 19 years with a range of special educational needs. The Trust's mission is to
provide high quality education for students from 4 — 19 years of age with complex, severe or profound learning difficulties
and, or autistic spectrum disorder. We aspire for all our students to make as much progress as possible, our overarching
vision is “inspiring future success for all”.

Our work over the last 12 months has condributed to focus on the quality of education offered in all our settings, with
careful scrutiny of the finances needed to support this. Together with the ELT, we have reviewed our meeting formats
and sfructures with the aim of becoming more efficient whilst ensuring high levels of accountability and challenge remain
at the core.

During the year our focus in meetings has been to ensure high levels of frustee participation with more opportunities for
discussion and debate alongside completing the necessary business. We believe that this has increased trustees
knowledge and supporled ocur abilily lo effectively hold the Execulive leaders to account. Our Trust Board scrutinises
the information provided at all meetings, together with the detailed discussions within stalutory committees {Finance,
Buildings and HR, Audit committee) in addition to the school based committees which focus on the quality of teaching
and tearning and pupil outcomes. The Trust employs a Clerk to record our statutory meetings and to support us with
guidance and advice as appropriate.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities
The Trustees are pleased to report that the main objectives of the Trust during the period ending 31st August 2024 have
been achieved, a summary of which is shown below.

s We have continued to work collaboratively with our CEQ and are aligned to the vision we all share for the future
direction of Woodbridge Trust.

+ Ensuring our main aim "inspiring successful futures for all” is at the core of all we do.

+ Vision, Values and principles developed with all stakeholders and rolled out to all settings

+ Qur schools and service continue in their pursuit of raising standards and achievement for all, monitoring and
evaluation of pupil progress.

+ Trust Board strategic plan evaluated and impact measured, developing further the sirategic plan through to
2026 and beyond.

s Building expansions have continued to be a focus for Trustees, with a 12 Classroom expansion at Ladywood,
in partnership with the LA, due to open Autumn 2024.

+ Continued to implement the Trust School Improvement Strategy to ensure continuous improvement of the
Quality of Provision.

+ Continue to evaluate and modify our risk management documents and procedures to ensure they are current
and robust.

» Ensuring as a Trust we are fully compliant with all statutory and regulatory requirements and returns.

»  Working closely with Bolton LA in addressing the further increasing schoot place demand in Firwood,
addressing the accommodation pressures. A comprehensive feasibility for a new Sixth Form building has
been submitted to Bolton LA and is being considered at present.

+ Implementation of a comprehensive Trust Quality Assurance Framework

« Development of a three year growth stratlegy

» External review of governance has been undertaken

« Introduction of additional therapy services throughout the Trust to enhance the statutory offer

s Development of a frust wide IT strategy

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard
to public benefit guidance published by the charity Commission for England and Wales. The Trustees have referred to
the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Trusts objectives in planning future
activities for the year. The Trust ensures that the schools / service continue to be at the heart of the community,
promoting community cohesion and sharing facilittes with other schools and the community (as appropriate)

Strategic Report
Achievement and Performance

The Trust has numerous ways of measuring achievement and performance, including financial and non-financial
indicators. The Trust also undertakes self-evaluation in key areas on an ongeing process to ensure that all areas of the
Trust are fulfitiing the mission in achieving the best possible outcomes for all students. As well as utilising services within
the Trust, external experts are also engaged to provide scrutiny and review in areas such as School Improvement,
Responsible Officer work and Health and Safety to name a few,

Key performance indicators

Ladywood and Firwood Schools are both popular and significantly oversubscribed. The pupll numbers in both schools
have risen from September 2024 and continue to be in high demand. Overall numbers currently stand at 207 Ladywood
and 232 Firwood.

We actively seek regular and detailed feedback from all stakeholders. Parents are particularly very positive and pupils
report that they are both happy and safe at school. Both Ladywood and Firwood have strong links with parents and the
positive ethos within the schools allows our children and young adults to thrive and have a desire to come to school.
Teaching and Learning is positive and engaging for ali pupils.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Attendance is very closely monitored and for the purposes of this report we have calculated attendance data for the
period September 2023 to July 2024. The attendance for the year 2023/24 was 92.6% Ladywood and 84.7% Firwood
which includes students with parttime placements. Overall attendance figures are in line with special schools nationally.

Pupil achievement is rigorously monitored and evaluated in all our schools.

The nature of our pupil needs means that typical atfainment at the end of Key stages and in GCSE examinations is not
appropriate, However, we benchmark our achievements against other special schools, our own historical data and
external accreditations that are suitable for pupils to access.

Ladywood

Ladywood’s curriculum provides pupils with opportunities to ignite curiosity and learn essential life skiils, including
communication, social skills and vocational skills, thus supporting them to fully celebrate all achievements, have
aspirational goals and achieve their full potential as children in the community.

Children at Ladywood School make Good or Quistanding progress. EYFS Teacher assessment shows Good or
Outslanding progress in all areas. Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 progress across all subjects is for the most part
Outstanding. Pupils on average made 3 points progress in English and Maths and Science. At Ladywood approximately
24% of the cohort are able to access the Phonics Screening Test.

Target setting is an intrinsic part of the Ladywood Assessment Calendar. Targets are set at the end of the summer term
for current pupils or within the first half term of a pupil starting at Ladywood. Targets are reviewed twice a year and form
a key point of discussion within Pupil Progress Meelings. In Summer 2024, the following results were achieved:

91% of children met / exceeded target in English — Reading
87% of children met/ exceeded target in English — Wriling
91% of children mel / exceeded target in Maths — Number
95% of children met [ exceeded target in Maths — SSM

Cohort analysis of pupil progress across all key groups shows little differential.

The implementation of our new pupil progress reports last year, had a positive impact on the early identification of any
support needed for individual pupils. The report enabled clear triangulation of data so that we gain a holistic view of
each child in relation to their EHCP outcomes, their core subject progress and their social, emotional, physical and
mental wellbeing.

During the year, Ladywood invested in further support via the Social and Emotional pathway team which had a direct
impact on engagement with learning. Further support was also implemented from the Sensory pathway team.

Functional Bridge tiers were implemented in all foundation subject curriculum maps, which will ensure that all curriculum
maps have strong progression throughout.

Firwood

Firwood’s curricuium has been developed to meet the needs of all students and continues to evolve to provide engaging
learning for ali abilities and pathways. MAPP assessment is used fo ensure students learning is aspirational and linked
to EHCP outcomes. At the core of the drive for individual pupil achievement is the cuiture of high expectations for all our
pupils to achieve the very best they can with a strong focus on preparation for adulthood. Data is analysed forensically
so fhat next steps in learning can be identified for each pupil. The capturing of data which reflects progress in non-
academic subjects is also crucial for our pupils. We particularly focus on PSHE, independence and the acquisition of
life skills as well as embedding communication skills.

There are six strands of learning in the Curriculum in KS3/4 which are based on the national curriculum. In the 6th form
the strands are tailored lo incorporate the preparation for aduithood agenda. Al curriculum areas have had positive
increases in students making Expected/Exceeded progress from the Autumn term. The following progress was
achieved:

89% of KS3 students have made expected or exceeded progress compared to 80% of students in 2023-2024.

82% of KS4 students have made expected or exceeded progress across the curriculum,
93% of KS5 students have made expected or exceeded progress across all strands.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Firwood has a number of extremely medically vulnerable students and continue to develop our Home Reach offer
providing educational opporiunities for students who are unable to attend school. The provision for students with
complex medical needs in schoo! continues to be developed and three areas have now been designed to allow students
with medical needs to be educated alongside their peer related cohort across all Key Stages.

MAPP, was successfully implemented across school and used by all phases of students. The impact has been positive
and student progress has remained slrong. Evidence for Learning is also embedded across the school which allows all
classes now use this to record, monitor and caplure progress for all learners across all curriculum areas.

Firwood accreditation offer continues to expand and be personalised fo ceiebrate and recognise the achievements of
our Thrive, Inspire and Strive student and our Home Reach students. A total of 661 combined entries across a range of
accredited bodies.

Our KS4 personalised accreditation journey enables students across the key stage to work towards achieving a
qualification in ASDAN Persconal Progress. Year 10 students continue to work towards their ASDAN Personal Progress
certification in which will be externally moderated in July 2024. In July, 26 year 11 students completed their journey with
a successful external moderation, achieving an ASDAN Award.

Across KS5 53 students worked towards bespoke AQA Unit Awards written to recognise their achievements through
the curriculum. Students also worked towards accreditation in their chosen options group. 2 students achieved their
Silver Duke of Edinburgh Award, 6 Bronze and 2 achieved Due of Edinburgh certificates. 8 students achieved their
ASDAN Foodwise, and 7 students achieved their ASDAN Focus in Computer Technology. 12 students participated in a
national Enterprise award and won several national awards competing against other special schools and some
mainstream schools. In K55 we also celebrated 5 of our Strive learners achieving Entry Level 1 in Functional Maths and
1 student who achieved Entry Level 2.

SEND Service {Outreach)

The Woodbridge SEND Service is committed to supporting the inclusion of learners with special educational needs and
disabilities (SEND) in mainstream educafional settings across the North West. The team comprises of highly
experienced and qualified specialist teachers and teaching assistants who work closely with educational settings to build
capacity and provide tailored support. Our goal is to ensure every pupil receives the highest gualily educational
experience. The service collaborates with a variety of professional agencies across both the education and health
sectors to deliver holistic support.

The service is held accountable through rigorous Key Performance Indicators (KPis}), which are reviewed in partnership
with the Local Authority (LA) and ensure that the service consistently promotes enhancements and maintains high
standards of care. In June 2024, the Local Authority underwent a comprehensive area inspection, which highlighted the
positive impact our service has had on the children and young people we support.

The service monitors over 1,230 Education, Health, and Care Plans (EHCPs) and provides regular feedback to the LA,
ensuring effective support for pupils. Additionally, the service have facilitated 98% of post-diagnostic meetings for
children following the Bolton BSCIP pathway, reflecting our commitment to timely and comprehensive support.

Woe understand that families play a critical role in supporting children with SEND, which is why we offer a range of parent
courses. We have also facilitated parent workshops for transition alongside Bolton inclusion advisory service and Bolton
Parent Carers workshop.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the academy Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure. For this reason it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can
be found in the Statement of Accounting Policy
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Promoting the success of the company

In promoting the success of the Trust and to ensure the longevity of the Trust and the continuing provision of high
quality education te ali of our students both now and in fulure we ensure that with any decision the following are
reviewed,

¢ The consequences of any decision in the long term

¢ The impact of any decision on the company’s employees

e The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

« The impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

¢ The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

+ The need to act fairly as between members of the company

Financial Review

Most of the Trust's income is derived from two separate sources. Firstly in the form of the recurrent grants, predominantly
based on pupil numbers, from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), the use of these grants is restricted to
particular purposes. Secondly in the form of High Needs top up funding from the Local Authority (Bolton Council}, which
is specific to the individual needs of the students on role at any given time. The grants and high needs funding received
in the period ending 31 August 2024 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants in the form of additional high needs funding from the Local Authority for the provision of
the Outreach service to mainstream Bolton schools and nurseries.

During the period ended 31 August 2024, total expenditure of £13,013k was incurred (which excludes depreciation of
£508k and FRS 102 service and interest income of £313k), which was more than covered by the recurrent grant funding
from the ESFA together with other incoming resources which totalled £13,521k. {n addition, £578k was transferred to
restricted fixed asset fund. Total restricted funds carried forward amounted to £51k.

Unrestricted income in the period ended 31 August 2024 amounted to £729k. Unrestricted expenditure for the period
amounted to £14k. Total unrestricted funds carried forward amount to £2,373k.

At 31 August 2024 the net book value of assets amounted to £26,324,519. The cost of fixed asset additions in the period
ending 31 August 2024 amounted to £1,127k the majority of which is as a result of the completed new roof CIF award
and Fire safety CIF award. There are currently £2,217k of Assets Under Construction which refate directly to a 12
classroom extension at Ladywood which is due to be completed January 2025 and a new entrance which is due to be
completed September 2024. Restricted fixed asset funds carried forward amount to £26,394,172.

Under accounting standard FRS 102, it is necessary to charge any projected deficits on the Local Government Pension
Scheme, which is provided for non-teaching staff, to the restricted fund. As at the Accounting Date, the defined befit
scheme has an excess of assets over liabilities of £3,085k. The trust has not received any formal notification of recovery
of surplus either by reduced contributions or refunds. Therefore, this does not constitute an asset under FRS 102 and
a nil balance is included in the pension fund.

Reserves policy
Unrestricted Reserves

Woodbridge Trust's unrestricted reserves are derived from income funds, grants or donations that can be spent at the
discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of any of the Trusts objectives.

If part of an unrestricted income fund is earmarked for a particular project it may be designated as a separate fund, but
the designation has an administrative purpose only, and does not legally restrict the Trustee’s discretion to spend the
fund. Unrestricted reserves will be achieved through operational efficiencies and any trading activities undertaken by
the Trust.
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Restricted Reserves

Woodbridge Trust's restricted reserves may be restricted income funds, grants or donations that are spent at the
discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of some particular aspects of the objects of the mulii academy Trust; or where
the nature of expenditure has been defined by the donor; or they may be endowment funds, where the funds or assets
are required to be invested or retained for actual use, rather than spent.

Restricted reserves are only available for expenditure once the Trust has met its commitments and other planned
expenditure and is in accordance with the limitations outlined in the original funding.

Pension Reserve

The risks surrounding the Trust's pension liability are taken into consideration when calculating other reserves. The
presence of a pension surplus or deficit does not constitute an immediate liability (or realisable asset) and does not
mean that the equivalent amount is already committed and no longer available to the Trust.

The presence of a pension surplus or deficit will generally resuit in a cashflow effect for the Trust in the form of an
increase or decrease in employers’ pension contributions over a period of years.

The Trust continues to calculate its reserves without setting aside a designated reserve to cover the pension liabiity.
The total reserves held at 31 August 2024 is £28,817,449 which is made up of the following:

Unrestricted reserves £2,372,686

Restricted reserves £50,591

Fixed asset reserves £26,394,172

Restricted pension reserve Nil Balance

Investment Policy

Woodbridge Trust holds cash balances and thereby must make investment decisions. The Trust must manage the need
for working capital against tying up funds in long term options. The invesiment cbjective of the Trust is to provide income
to the Trust to help maintain its operational effecliveness in the short term. However, a total return approach will take
precedence, allowing the Trust to focus on investments providing optimal performance in terms of overall return rather

than investments which would provide the right balance of capital and income return. The protection of present and
future beneficiaries will be key responsibility of the Trust.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks to the Trust are documented and managed using a risk management policy and risk register which
is regularly reviewed. The process of risk and assurance has been developed during the year with a defined cycle
embedded across the Trust. This allows the Board to be constantly aware of the key strategic risks which affect the
Trust.

The Trust has carried out a carefu] review of the risks and uncertainties it faces in the coming year. In summary these
are viewed to be

+ Managing the increasing demand for places at both Ladywood and Firwood Scheols,

¢ Continue to monitor the traded element of SEND Service which is reliant on the purchase of additional services
by schools in a time of cuts to school budgets.

¢ Maintaining constant vigilance to ensure the health, safety and wellbeing of all pupils

« Ensuring that appropriate medical staff are available to support pupils, particularly at Firwood where there are
a number of pupils with highly complex medical needs.

« Increased staffing costs due {o changes in employer National insurance, inflationary rises, including the impact
on all cosis.

+ Recruitment and retention of high quality staff able to meet the complex needs of our pupils

» Conduct robust and meaningful due diligence for any school joining Woodbridge Trust

* Maintaining high educational standards
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Key controls in place to mitigate these risks are

+  School and Service Improvement Plans including detailed curriculum review

» Detailed, regular analysis of pupil achievement data

+ Robust self-evaiuation processes across the schools and service, including Trust quality assurance

« Monitoring of safeguarding, wellbeing and pupil safety on a regular basis and by a range of different people
including ELT, SLT and Trustees.

s Frequent review of medical provision at Firwood and close refationship with health service providers

s Clear organisational structure for the Trust supported by clear policies which steer the work of the Trust.

« Financial planning, multiyear budgeling and regular financial reporfing to the Audit Committee and Board of
Trustees highlighting areas of potential financiai risk

+ Effective internal control systems that are regularly tested and monitored

s Comprehensive internal audit procedures to cover business reviews and routine health checks

e Audit committee scrutiny and challenge

s Continuing development of the Workforce Plan for the Trust to ensure succession planning, talent spotling,
recruitment and retention of staff and leadership development is as effective as it can be.

¢ Maintain a close and robhust relationship with the Local Authority to enable appropriate, long term solutions to
be found to address the demand for pupil places at Firwood School.

¢ Utilising a robust due diligence checklist, ensuring information received is analysed and interrogated by
appropriately skilled individuals and presented to and scrutinised by the Trust Board which includes a wealth of
skills and expertise

Fundraising

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by
the Trustees

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Trust is pleased to report its current UK annual energy usage and associated greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
pursuant to the Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Parinership (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulation
2018 (the 2018 Regulations) that came into force 1 Aprit 2019,

Organisational boundary

In accordance with the 2018 Regulations, the energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions are for those within
the UK only for all assets that come under an operational control boundary. This includes the 2 schools controlled during
the reporting period along with minibuses. The energy and carbon emissions are aligned to this period.

Quantification and reporting methodology

The 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed. The 2024 UK Government GHG conversion factors for company
reporling were used in emissions calculations.

The electricity, gas, biomass and minibus diesel consumption were compiled from automatic meter readings, invoices
and mileage records. Gross calorific values were used as per Government GHG Conversion Factors.

Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh):

Energy Type 2023/24 2022/23 % change
Gas 574,484 602,756 -4.7%
Purchased Electricity 398,065 387,724 2.7%
Transport fuel 6,000 6,000 0.0%
Biomass 192,276 50,009 284.5%
Total Energy

consumpfiion 1,170,825 1,046,489 11.9%
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Woodbridge Trust
Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Intensity ratio

The primary intensity ratio is gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e (mandatory emissions} per pupil, which is the
recommended ratio for the sector for consistency and comparability. Pupil numbers are based on the Autumn 2023
Census,

Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported energy use (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent)

Emissions Source 2023/24 2022/23 % change
Gas 105.07 110.04 -4.5%
Purchased Electricity 82.42 80.2% 2.7%
Transport fuel 1.52 1.50 0.9%
Biomass 2.18 0.54 305.2%
Total Emissions 191.1% 192.37 -0.6%
intensity Ratio 0.47 0.49 -5.2%

Energy efficiency action during the financial year

Energy consumption year on year in relation to gas and biomass has reduced as a result of reducing the operational
hours of the boilers, in addition accurate meters and sub meters have been installed so that the academies can monitor
usage more effectively. The consumption of electricity has increased slightly as a result of the 12 classroom extension
that has been undergoing construction during the year and also the modular building that we have onsite at one of the
academies. During the year the Trust also commissioned a DEC (Display Energy Certificate) at one site that had
previously shared with the collocated school. This has highlighted some areas for improvement and they are working
through the recommendations.

The trust is committed to reducing longer term emissions and is planning on introducing the following from September
2024

» All schools continuing to convert to high efficiency LED lights

» Solar panels being inciuded in the new classroom at one site

» Reviewing the possibility of EV charging points at all sites

+ Condition surveys to be commissioned at all sites to highlight any potential efficiency savings

Plans for Future Periods

In selting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public benefit’, the future objectives are;

¢ Continue to work closely with Bolton LA in addressing the increasing school place demand across all age ranges
and explore opportunities for growth with a view to addressing the accommodation pressures across the Trust

¢ Further develop the plan with the Local Authority to address the pupil pressures at Firwood by the addition of
an offsite Sixth Form

s Maintain the high quality educational provisions

+ To be aware of potential political decisions which may impact education

+ Evolve External Partnerships including the traded services and the ongoing development of the North West
irfen centre.

e Work with the DFE to introduce another school to Woodbridge Trust.

o Work with ELT on the delivery of the Woodbridge Trust growth sirategy for the next 3 years

« Further develop and embed Partnerships and Peer working particularly with trust growth being a key focus area

« Continue to extend the opportunities across the Trust for further research and innovation devetopment

+ Continue to ensure the current Keeping Children Safe in Education Policy is implemented consistently in our
practice

» To continuously monitor the financial health of the Trust

e To further the drive for greater efficiencies and economies of scale.
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Trustees’ Report for the year ending 31 August 2024 (continued)

Auditor

Continue to evaluate and modify our risk management documents and procedures to ensure they are current
and robust.

Development and Implementation of an Asset Management Plan and 3 year estates expansion

Increase the capacity of the Trust central team in line with growth

Further development and implementation of a Workforce strategy

Embed the Vison, Values and Principles throughout the Trust to support the culture and our aim of “inspiring
successful futures for all’

Strengthen the educational offer through cross trust CPD, partnerships and school improvement networks
Create a corporate image and brand that is easily identified and respected by all

In so far as the Trustees are aware

There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is aware
The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 13 December 2024 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

Heddes B Sossd

Heather Scott Pip Hoyes // HW {LS
Chair of Trustees Trustee ' /
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Woodbridge Trust
Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees we acknowledge our overall responsibility for ensuring that Woodbridge Trust has an effective and
appropriate syslem of control covering all aspects of the Trust's business activities. Such systems are designed to
manage and mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and goed financial management and that
these are in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreements between
Woodbridge Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting
to the Board any material weakness or breakdowns in internal control.

Trustees are well trained and are committed to attending training that enhances understanding of their responsibilities
and legal function. This equips them with the knowledge to provide both challenge and support for the Senior Leadership
Teams at all of the academies in the Trust. The Scheme of Delegation balances the need for control with empowering
Academy and senior leaders to be accountable for the performance of the academy / area they manage.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbock and competency
framework for governance.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement
of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board has formally met 3 times during the period ending 31 August 2024. Attendance
during the year, be this physically in person or remotely at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee / Member Meetings Attended Out of a possible
Heather Scott (Chair of Truslees / Member) 3 3
Dr Pip Hoyes (Vice Chair of Trustees) 3 3
Ashley Mason 3 3
Dr Tony Birch 2 3
Lindsay Bradbury 2 3
Anika Keys 1 3
Tony Purcell 2 3
Adam Whalley 3 3
Louise Whalley 3 3
Alex Docherty (appointed 28/6/2024) 1 1

The Board is supported by a Governance Support Officer, who also provides advice and guidance. The size, structure
and composition of the Board and Committees is constantly reviewed to ensure that the governance remains robust
and challenging.

The board oversees all Trust activities from Pupil attainment, progress and attendance to financial management, viability
and stability of the Trust, the future growth of the Trust, along with key personnel appointments,

The board has agreed a scheme of delegation in order that decision making is devolved to the desired operational or
strategic level.

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees. The main purpose of the Commitlee is to advise the
Board of Trustees on the Trust’s assurance framework in line with the Academies Financial Handbook, Articles of
Association and Funding Agreements, supporting the Board in fulfifiing its responsibilities with regard to financial and
business risk management together with the wider internal control framework of the Trust. Meetings of the Committee
will be held at least 3 times during the year, The work of the committee continues to develop, focused by clear terms of
reference, providing resitience to the Boards reporting mechanisms.
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Governance Statement (continued)

Attendance at meetings during the period ended 31 August 2024 was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Qut of a Possible
Dr Pip Hoyes (Chair) 3 3
Ashley Mason 1 3
Dr Tony Birch 3 3

The Finance, HR and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. The Commitlee is
responsible to the Board of Trustees for Financial, HR and Health and Safety matters, this includes but is not fimited to
the reviewing the budgets, reviewing of poficies relating to these areas, pay review, grievances, disciplinary, ensuring
submission of key returns by the CFQ to the ESFA/DFE. The committee deal with other financial or audit matters as
may from time to time be referred to the committee for consideration.

Altendance at meetings during the period ending 31 August 2024 is as foliows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Tony Purcelt {Chair) 3 3
Lindsay Bradbury 1 3
Anika Keys 2 3
Heather Scott 3 3
Adam Whalley 3 3

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy Trust delivers good
value for money in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy Trust’s use of its resources have provided good value for money
during each academic year and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved. The
accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by,

+ Investing in a robust financial accounting system capable of dealing with the demands and complexities of Trust
accounting, which has reduced processing and manipulation time of the financials increasing efficiencies.

« Growing the multi academy Trust to achieve financial opportunities, in particular in the case of Ladywood
Outreach

+« Conducted a review of Other Income sources both for educational resources and afterschoot lettings

« Whole scale review of all cost centres and contracts and retendering where appropriate.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed lo manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The syslem of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, fo evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal contro! has been in place in Woodbridge Trust for the period ending 31 August 2024 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that
there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy Trust’s significant risks that
has been in piace for the period ending 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. The process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
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Governance Statement (continued)

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. in
particular, it includes;

o Establishment of an effective and consistent assurance framewaork for ali commitiees
s Comprehensive budget and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly periodic financial reports
which are reviewed by the Board of Trustees
s Regular review by the Board, Audit commiltee and Finance, HR and Premises committee of reports which
indicate financial performance against forecasts.
¢ Creating a consistency of approach in key systems and processes across the Trust to mitigate risk of local
variance
s Clearly defined purchasing guidelines
» Delegalion of authorily and segregation of duties
» Internal audit reviews of business processes and risk areas undertaken by DJH Mitten Clarke. This covered the
following area;
o Review of Income
o Review of Payroll Systems and controls surrounding them
o Review of Cash & Bank
Any issues identified have been allocated a limescale for completion and will be reviewed by the Audit
committee and the Board of Trustees.

On a termly basis, the Internal auditor reporis to the Board of Trustees, through the audit committee on the operation of
the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Truslees’ financiat responsibilities. The Internal Auditor
prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and
conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess progress.

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control. During the year, the review has been informed by:

¢ the work of the Audit Committee

¢ the work of the external auditor

¢ the work of the internal auditor

« the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management self-
assessment tool

¢ the work of executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the resuits of their review of the system of internal control
by the Audit Committee and a plan lo address minor weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of systems is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Hec;c'ﬁ:\l\‘;g 2 <=t W/\ ¢

Heather Scott Michael Sidebottom
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
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Woodbridge Trust
Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Woodbridge Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy Trust Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance
with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the academy Trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that ! and the academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2023,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date.
If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Michael Sidebottom
Accounting Officer

13 December 2024
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Woodbridge Trust
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees, who are responsible for governance of Woodbridge Trust, are directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. They are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income
and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024
+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure thal the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform wilh the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on

the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in cther jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 13 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Heather Scoft
Chair of Trustees
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Woodbridge Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Woodbridge Trust (“the Academy Trust”) for the year ended 31 August
2024, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of lreland’,

In our opinion the financial statements;

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's company’s affairs as at 31 August 2024
and its application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

* have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1ISAs {UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the original financial statements were authorised for issue.

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report,

Other information (covers the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report and Strategic
Report and the Governance Statement) '

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
I our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Trustees' Report have heen prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Woodbridge Trust
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust {continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment cbtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we reqguire for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 18], the Truslees are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internai control as the Trustees determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the company to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audif of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
iSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecling irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance, The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation.

+ The engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

«  We identified the laws and regulations applicable to the trust through discussions with directors and other
management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the academies sector;

*«  We focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct{ material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the frust, including the Companies Act 20086, taxation legislation and
dala protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental, and health and safety legislation;

*» We assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries
of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

+ ldentified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert
to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the trust’s financial statements fo material missiatement, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

« Making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge
of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

+ Considering the internal conlrols in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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Woodbridge Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Woodbridge
Trust (continued)

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

Performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
Tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
Assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were indicative
of potential bias; and
+ Investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:

Agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

Reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance

Enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

Reviewing correspondence with HMRC

{dentify and test journal entries, in particular any journal entries posting with unusual account combinations

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at;
www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust’'s Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's Members
those matlers we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ofher than the Academy Trust and its Members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

S Lethoh ~Deuta,

Simon Leitch-Devlin {(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Xeinadin Audit, Statutory Auditor

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

SK4 2HD
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Woodbridge Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Woodbridge Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 May 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 24, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Woodbridge Trust during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibilily to anyone other than Woodbridge Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Board of Trustee's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 28 September 2018 and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1
September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 24. We report to you whether anything has come te our attention in carrying out
our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from
1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obfain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reascnable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a posilive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ We have confirmed that the activities conform to the Academy Trust's framework of authorities. As identified by
review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and other key management
personnel.

+ We have carried out analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general activities of the Academy
Trust are within the Academy Trust's framework of authorities.

» We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer’'s statement of regularity, propriety and
compliance and have evaluated the general control environment of the Academy Trust and extended the
procedures required for the financial statement to include regularity.

e« We have assessed and tested a sample of specific control aclivities over regularity of a particular activity. In
performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the activity is permissible within the
Academy Trust's framework of authorities, We confirm that each item tested has been appropriately authorised
in accordance with the Academy Trust's delegated autherities and that the internal delegations have been
approved by the Trust Beard and conform to the limits set by the Department for Education.
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Woodbridge Trust
Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Woodbridge Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

¢ Formal representations have been obtained from the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer acknowledging
their responsibilities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and regulations specific to the authorising
framework, access to accounting records, provision of information and explanations and other matlers where
direct evidence is not available.

e In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant funding within the
funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered whether supplies are from
related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of interests, and whether or not there was
involvement in the decision to order from this supplier.

* We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted with the Academy
Trust’s charitable objects.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant

Xeinadin Audit Limited

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

SK4 2HD
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Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ending 31 August 2024
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Unrestricteq _Restricted Restricted Fisee;tiseedt Total 2023/2024
Funds SGeneral Funds  Pension Funds Funsds ola
Income and endowments from: Note
Donations and capita grants 2 16,538 2,986 2,277,785 2,297,309
Transfer from local authorily on conversion -
Charitable aclivities:

Funding for the academy trust's

educational operations 3 - 12,090,642 - 12,080,642
Other trading activities 4 711,952 698,870 - 1,410,822
Investments 5 306 - 306
Total 728,796 12,792,498 - 2,277,785 15,799,078
Expenditure on:

Charitabla activilies:

Academy trust educationat operations 7 13,549 12,999,394 {313,000) 598,047 43,297,990
Total 13,649 12,999,394 {313,000) 598,047 13,297,990
Net income [ {(expenditure) 715,247 (206,896) 313,000 1,679,738 2,501,088
Transfers between funds {577,994) 577,994 -
Other recognised gains / {losses):

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined

benefit pension schemes 24 - - {313.000) - {313,000)
Gains / losses on revaluation of fixed assets - - - - -
Net movement in funds 715,247 (784,890.31) N 2,257,732 2,188,088
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward at 1 September 2023 1,657,439 835,482 - 24,136,440 26,629,361
Total funds carried forward 2,372,686 50,591 - 26,394,172 28,817,449
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Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the year ending 31 August 2023
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

. . Restricted
Unrestiicted _ Restricted Restricted ;. od Assel Total 2022/2023
Funds General Funds  Pension Funds
Funds
Income and endowments from: Note
Donations and capital granis 2 19,263 2,580 1,355,897 1,377,750

Transfer from local authorily on conversion -
Charitable activities:

Funding for the academy trust's

educationat gperations 3 - 10,758,853 - 10,758,853
Other trading activilies 4 554,061 586,057 - 1,140,118
Investments 5 217 - 217
Total 573,541 11,347,500 - 1,355,897 13,276,939
Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational operations 7 111,823 10,982,884 234,000 576,353 11,905,060
Total 111,823 10,982,884 234,000 576,353 11,905,060
Net income / {expenditure) 461,718 364,616 {234,000) 779,544 1,371,879
Transfers between funds - (64,266) 64,266 -
QOther recognised gains / (losses):

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined

benefit pension schemes 24 - - 253,000 - 253,000
Gains { losses on revaiuation of fixed assets - - - - -
Net movement in funds 461,718 300,351 19,000 843,810 1,624,879
Reconcitiation of funds

Total funds brought forward at 1 September 2022 1,195,720 535,132 (19,0600 23,292,631 25,004,483
Total funds carried forward 1,657,439 835,482 - 24,136,440 26,629,361
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Woodbridge Trust

Balance Sheet
as at 31 August 2024

Company Number 11538176

31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23
Notes £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible asseis 12 26,324,519 23,578,644
Current assets
Debtors 13 2,113,459 1,340,750
Cash at bank and in hand 1,839,122 2,613,494
3,952,581 3,954,244

Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 {1,459,652) {903,527}
Net current assets 2,492,930 3,050,717
Total assets less current liabilities 28,817,449 26,629,361
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than cne year 15 - -
Net assets excluding pension liability 28,817,449 26,629,361
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 - -
Total assets 28,817,449 26,629,361
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

. Fixed asset fund 16 26,394,172 24,136,440

. Restricted income fund 16 50,591 835,483

. Pension reserve 16 - -
Total restricted funds 26,444,763 24,971,923
Unrestricted income funds 16 2,372,686 1,657,439
Total funds 28,817,449 26,629,361

The financial statements on pages 21 to 48 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 13 December
2024 and are signed on their behalf by:

Heather Scott Pip Hoyes
Chair of Trustees Trustee
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Woodbridge Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ending 31 August 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust
Cash flows from investing aclivities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period
Cash and cash equivaients at 1 September

Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 August
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20

20

22

2024 2023

£000 £000
291,460 907,020
(1,065,831) 271,876
(774,371) 1,178,896
2,613,493 1,434,597
1,839,122 2,613,493




Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting poficies adopted {which have been appiied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entily under FRS 102, bave been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland {FRS102), the Accounting and Reporiing by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their accounts In accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of freland
{(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS102}), the Academies Accounis Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charilies Act
2011 and the Campanies Act 2006.

The Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102

Golng Concern

The frustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriale i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going cencern.
The trustees make this assessment in raspect of a period of at feast one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the
financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncerlainties about the academy trust's ability o continue as
a gaing concemn, thus they centinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
tncome

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlemnent lo the funds, the receiptis probable and the
amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Granis are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received
for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the refevant funds on the balance sheet,
Whiere income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related canditions there is not unconditional
enlittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
acerued,

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Aclivities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducled from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the asset an which
they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Sponsorship iIncome

Sponsorship income provided lo the academy trust which amounts fo a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it s receivable {(where there are no performance-reiated conditions),
where the receipt is probable aad it can be measured reliabily.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the ameunt can be reliably measured,

Other Income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, Is recognised in the period it is receivable and %o the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facililies and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceads from sale less the expected costs
of sale, If itis practical o assess the fair value al receipt, it is recognised in steck and ‘Incoeme from other frading
activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income feom other trading activities' and the
proceeds are recognised as 'lncome from other trading activities'. Where itis impractical to fair value the items due
to the volume of low value items they are nat recognised in the financial statements unlil they are scld. This
income is recagnised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donaled good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impracticat to measure this reliably,
in which case the cost of the item Lo the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income frem donations
and a corresnonding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trus{'s accounting policies.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)
Expenditure

Expenditure is recagnised once there is a lagal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
prebable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in setilement and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by aclivity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity
are allocated directly to that aclivity. Shared costs which contribute {o more than ore activity and support cosls which are
not altriputable 1o a single activity are apportioned between those aclivities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Cendral staff costs are allacated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's
use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds \

This inctudes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for ils charitable purposes and includes
costs of afl fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

s Charitable Agtivities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educaticnal operations, including support costs and costs relating
1o the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable aclivities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT
Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed asseis and are carried at cost, nat of depreciation and any
provisiorn for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the
private secter, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreclated over their expected useful economic life.
Where thare are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are
credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carred forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricled fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities, Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciaticn is provided on all tangible fixed assels other than freehold land, at rates calculated o write off the cost of each
assel on a straight-line basis over its expacted useful [ife, as follows:

Leasehoid fand and buildings 50 - 125 years
Plant and Machinery 10 - 15 years
Furniture : 5 - 10 years
Motor Vehicles 5 - 10 years
Computer equipment 3-5years

Assels in the course of construction are included at cost, Depreciation on these assets is nol charged until they are brought
into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asse! is carried oul if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrylng value

of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying vaiue of fixed assets and their recoverable
amounis are recognised as impairments. fmpairment fosses are recogrised in the Stalement of Financial Activities.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

Liabilities

iiabililies are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that
a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the setllement can be astimated reliably.
Liabililies are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anlicipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has
received as advanced paymenis for the goods of services it mus! provide.

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the academy trusl has an obiigation at the reperting date as a result of a past event which
it is probable will resuit in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required o settle the obfigation. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the risks specific to the fiabiity. The unwinding of the discount is recegnised within interest payable and
similar charges.

Leased Assots
Rendals under operating leases are charged on a straighl line basis over the lease tarm.

Financial Instruments

The academy frust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial asseis and liabilities of the
academy trust and their measurement basis are as fellows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in nole
13, Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabiiities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost as detailed in note 14. Taxation and social securily are not included in financial instruments disciosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is no
obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity's wholly owned
subsiduary are held at face value less any impairement.

Taxation

The academy trust Is considered fo pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore
i{ meats the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the acadamy trust is polentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Penstons Benefits

Retirement benefils 1o employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘'TPS') and the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from
those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as {o spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working fives with the academy trustin such a way thal the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basls of quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit methed, As stated in the notes to the financial statements, the TPS is a muili-
employer scheme and there Is insufficient information available 1o use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore
treated as a defined costribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised ia the period to which
they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separale trustee
administered funds. Pension schema assels are measured at fair value and liabiliies are measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rale equivalent to the current rate of return on a high gquality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilites. The actuarial valuations are obtained at leas! triennially and
are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged o operating surpius are the cusrent service cosls and the
costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seltiements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff cosis as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined banefit liabitity/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financiat Activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rale used {o discount the benefit
obtigations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels and the actual return on the scheme assets
is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recagnised gains and losses.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towasds meeting any of ihe charitable objects of
the academy trust al the discretion of the frustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose,

Restricted general funds comprise ali other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and
include grants from the Education & Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expeclations of future evenls that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumplions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seidom equal the related actuat resulls. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and %iabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumpliens used in determining the net cost
{income) for pensions inglude the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will
impact the carrying amount of the pensions labifity. Furthermore a rofl forward approach which projects results from the
latest full actuarial vatuation peeformed at 3t March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions fiability at
31 August 2023, Any differences between the figures derived from the rol} forward approach and a full actuariat valuation
would impact on the carrying ameunt of the pension liabiity.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

2 Donations and capital grants
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 202372024 202212023
£ £ £ £
Educational trips and visits 2,086 2,986 2,590
Donated Fixed Assets - . -
Capital Grants - 2277785 2,277,785 1,355,897
Donations 16,538 16,538 19,263
16,538 2,280,771 2,297,308 1,377,750
3 Funding for the Academy Trust's Educational Operations
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2023/2024 202212023
£ £ £ £
DfE { EFA grants
. General Annual Grant (GAG) - 3,700,000 3,700,000 3,700,000
. Start Up Grants - - . -
. Other EME/EFA grants - 409,748 409,748 314,128
- 4,109,748 4,109,748 4.014,128
Other Government grants
. Local authority grants - 7.980,894 7,980,894 6,744,726
. Special educational projects - - - .
COVID-19 additional funding (DFE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium - - -
Other DFE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - -
- 7,980,894 7,980,894 6,744,726
Other income from the academy trust's educational operations - - - -
- 12,090,642 12,000,642 10,758,853
4 Other Trading activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 202312024 20222023
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 22,649 - 22,649 28,906
Catering Income 40,833 40,833 39,812
Other Income 689,303 658,037 1,347,340 1,071,400
711,952 698,870 1,410,822 1,140,118
§ Investment income
Unrestricted Resfricted Totat Total
Funds Funds 2023/2024 2022/2023
£ £ f £
Shoert term deposits 306 - 306 217
306 - 306 217
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Woodbridge Trust

Notes tc the Financial Statements for the year ending

31 August 2024 (continued)

6 Expenditure

Non Pay Expenditure

Total Totat
Staff Costs  Premises Other  2023{2024  2022/2023
£ £ £ £ £
Academy’s educational operations:
. Direct costs 9,564,397 322,717 9,887,114 8,781,844
. Allocated support costs 1,218,800 1,179,290 1,012,786 3,410,876 3,123,216
10,783,197 1,179,290 1,335,503 13,297,990 11,905,060
Net incomef{expenditure) for the period includes:
Totai Total
2023/2024 202212023
Qperaling lease renlals 33,679 32,427
Depreciation 598,046 576,353
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit 15,625 14,880
- other services 2,335 2,225
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

7 Charitable Activities

Total Total
202312024 202212023
£ £
Direct costs ~ educational eperations 9,887,114 8,781,844
Support costs — educational operations 3,410,876 3,123,216

13,297,990 11,905,060

Analysis of support costs Educational Total Total
operations 2023/2024  2022/2023
£ £ £

Support staff costs 1,218,800 1,218,800 1,394,988
Depreciation 598,046 598,046 576,353
Technology costs 108,275 108,275 107,377
Premises cosls 1,179,290 1,179,290 686,384
Other support costs 279,924 279,924 323,428
Governance costs 26,541 26,541 34,687
Total support costs 3,410,876 3,410,876 3,123,216
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

8 Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were: Total Total
2023/2024  2022/2023
£ £
Wages and salaries 8,067,218 7,178,927
Social security costs 752,159 660,426
Cperating costs of defined benefil pension schemes 1,637,032 1,780,405

10,456,408 9,619,758

Supply staff costs 351,787 283,069
10,808,196 9,902,827

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows:
2023/2024 2022/2023

No. No.
Teachers 84 78
Administration and support 219 213
Management 3 3
306 294
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)
¢ Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

was:
2023/2024 2022/2023
No. No.
£60,001 - £70,000 7 5
£70,001 - £80,000 2 1
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 2
£100,001 - £110,000 2 2
£110,001 - £120,000 1 -

d Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trusl comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {including emptoyer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personne for their services to the
academy trust was £395,014 (2023 £301,031)
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

9 Central Services

The academy trust has provided the following ceniral services to its academies during the year:

8 Governance

® |eadership Support

o Financial Managementi

= Facilities Management

# School improvement services
8 Software

= L egal and professional fees

The academy frust charged for these services based upon time apportionment of each
academy. The actual amounts charges during the period ended 31 August 2024 were as

follows:
Total Total
2023/2024 2022/2023
£ £
Ladywood School and Qutreach 303,780 263,124
Firwood High School 281,664 224,376

585,444 487,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

10 Related Party Transactions - Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses
No trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with the academy
trust. The principal does not act in the capacity of an ex-officio trustee and only receives remuneration in respect of
services provided undertaking the roles of principal under their contract of employment

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set otitin note 26

11 Trustees’ and Officers’ Insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement {RPA), an allernative to
insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or ommissions occuring whilst on Academy business, and provides cover up
to £10,000,000. it is not possible to quantify the trustee and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the
RPA scheme.
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Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

12 Tangible Fixed Assets
Leasehold

Land and Furnilu.re and IT Equipment Motor Vehicles Assets un(lier Total
Buildings Fixtures construction
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
Cost at 1 September 2023 22,902,442 936,533 114,653 13,245 787,374 24,754,247
Transfer - - - - “ -
Additions 585,278 478,640 62,967 - 2,217,037 3,343,822
Disposals - - - - -
Al 31 August 2024 23,487,720 1,415,173.26 177,620 13,245 3,004,411 28,098,169
Depreciation
Al 1 September 2023 891,301 196,920 74,356 13,627 - 1,175,803
Revaluation -
Charged in year 462,431 110,354 25,044 218 - 598,047
Disposals - - - -
At 31 August 2024 1,353,732 307,274 99,400 13,245 - 1,773,650
Net book values
At 31 August 2023 22,011,141 739,613 40,298 218 787,374 23,578,644
At 31 August 2024 22,133,988 1,107,899 78,221 - 3,004,411 26,324,519

In July 2023 Capital works commenced in one of the academies to enable a 12 ciassroom extension to be completed by
November 2024, The expansion is being supported by way of a grant agreement with the Local Authority totaling £4.8M
which was signed on 10 August 2023. As at the 31 August 2024 £1,019k was owed to the Trust and has been recognised
on the batance sheet within Debtors. The unspent element of grant funding is £1.5M.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

13 Debtors

31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23

£ £
Trade debtors 341,788 190,236
VAT recoverable 363,141 132,834
Other debtors - -
Prepayments and accrued income 1,408,530 1,017,679
2,113,459 1,340,750
Accrued Income 31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23

£ £
Income accrued in the period 1,387,831 092,855

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was owed £152k funds relating to Teacher Pay &
Pension Grant and £33k relating to Maternily scheme income from the local authority, £1,059K
relating to capital works from the Local Authority, £35k in relation to pupil premium from the ESFA
and £109k in relation to CIF funding
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

14 Creditors: Amounts Falling due within one year
31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23

£ £
Trade creditors 709,415 409,931
Other taxation and social security - -
Other creditors 315 {729)
Accruals and deferred income 749,922 494,325
1,459,652 903,527
Deferred income 31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23
£ £
Resources deferred in the period 41,129 97,667

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding £14k funds in advance for UIFSM relating to
2024/2025, £24k in relation to National Tutoring Allcoation from the DFE which is to be repaid 2024/2025
and £3k in refation to invoices raised for 2024/2025

15 Creditors: Amounts Falling due after more than one year
31-Aug-24 31-Aug-23
£ £
Trade creditors - -
Other taxation and social security - -
Other creditors - -
Accruals and deferred income - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending

31 August 2024 (continued)

16 Funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG}

Pupil Premiuwm

Catch-up premium

Other DFE / ESFA COWVID-19 funding
Coronavirus Job Retention

Other DFE / ESFA Grants

Other income & Teaching Schoot

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion
DIE/ESFA capital grants
Cther Capital Granis

Capital expenditure from GAG

Restricted Pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds
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Balance at 1 Incomin Resources Balance at 31
September 3 E ded Gains, losses A t 2024
agg3 Tesources xpende and transfers ©GUS

£ £ £ £ £
- 3,700,000 (3,700,000} - -
(24,277) 212,716 (196,554) - (8,115}
32,376 213,022 {224,435} - 20,963
827,384 8,666,760 (8,878,408} {577,994) 37,743
835,483 12,792,458 (12,599,296) {577,994) 50,591
19,317,726 {598,047) - 18,719,672
1,409,215 {19,708} - 1,389,507
3,218,436 2,297,493 5,515,929
191,063 - - 577,994 769,056
24,136,440 2,277,785 (698,047} 577,994 26,394,172
- 313,000 {313,000} -
- - 313,000 {313,000} -
24,971,923 15,070,283  (13,284,443) {313,000} 26,444,763
1,657,439 728,796 {13,549) - 2,372,686
26,629,361 15,799,079  {13,297,992) {313,000) 28,817,448




Woodbridge Trust
Notes {o the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2023 (continued)

16 Funds (continued)

Comparalive information in respect of the preceding 12 month peried:
B;':;z;i‘; incoming Resources . Balance at 31
resources Expended Gains, losses August 2023
2022 and transfers
£ £ £ £ E
Restricted ganeral funds
General Annual Grant {GAG) - 3,700,000 {3,700,000) - -
Pupil Premium 54,712 198,284 (282,272) - (24,277)
Catch-up premium 89,127 (89,127} - .
Other DFE / ESFA COVID-19 funding - - -
Coronavirus Job Retention - - -
Other DFE / ESFA Grants o] 134,489 (102,114) - 32,376
Other incorme & Teaching School 386,202 7,314,728 6,808,371} {64,268) 827,384
535,131 11,347,501 {10,952,884)} {64,265) 835,483
Restricted fixed assetf funds
Transfer on conversion 19,894,080 (576,353} - 18,317,726
DEJESFA capital grants 549,104 860,110 . 1,409,215
Other Capital Grants 2,722,650 495,787 3,218,436
Capital expenditure from GAG 126,797 - - 64,266 191,063
23,292,631 1,355,807 {576.,3563) 64,266 24,136,440
Restricted Pension funds
Pension reserve {19,000} {234,000) 253,000 -
{19,000} - {234,000) 253,000 -
Total restricted funds 23,808,762 12,703,398  {11,793,237) 253,000 24,971,923
Tota! unrestricted funds 1,195,720 573,541 {111,823) - 1,657,439
Total funds 25,004,482 13,276,939  {11,905,060) 253,000 26,629,361

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of he charitable objects of the academy trust at
the discretion of the trustees

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset acquired or
created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received wilh resteictions imposed by the funder / donor and include grants from
the Education & Skills Funding Agency / Department for Education.
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16 Funds {continued)

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 3t Augusl 2024 were allocated as follows: Total Total
2024 2023
£ £
Ladywood School and Quireach 1,185,026 1,399,308
Finvood High Schoo! 1,043,410 973,260
Cenlral Services 134,842 120,353
Total before fixed assels and pension reserve 2423277 2,492,921
Reslricted fixed asset fund 26,394,172 24,136,440
Pension reserve - -
Total 28,617,449 26,629,361
Analysis of academles by cost
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Feaching and
Educational
Support Staff Other Support  Educational Total TFatal
Costs Staff Costs 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Ladywood Schoot, Teaching Schaol and Oulreach 5,013,757 478,059 7,028,995 5,882,150
Firwood High Schoot 4,363,522 690,326 5,994,554 5,253,004
Central services 187,118 243,415 574,838 443,391
Academy Trust 9,564,397 1,411,800 13,598,388 11,578,546

45 | Page




Woodbridge Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending
31 August 2024 (continued)

17 Analysis of Net Assets between Funds
Fund batances at 31 Augus!t 2024 are represented by:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Fixed Asset
Funds General Funds Pension Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ E £
Tangible fixed assets - 26,324,520 26,324,519
Current assets 2,372,686 1,610,242 69,653 3,052,581
Current liabilities - (1,459,652} (1,459,652)
Non-current liabilities - - -
Pension scheme liabilify - - - - -
Total net assets 2,372 686 50,591 - 26,394,172 28,817,449
Comparative information in respect of the preceding 12 month period is as follows:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Fixed Asset
Funds General Funds Pension Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assefs - 23,578,644 23,578,644
Current assets 1,657,439 1,738,008 557,797 3,954,244
Cutreni fiabilites - (903,527) (903,527}
Non-current liabilities - - -
Pension scheme liability - - - - -
Total net assets 1,657,439 835,482 - 24,136,440 26,629,361
18 Capital Commitments
2024 2023
£ £
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 1,517,635 584,789

19 Commitments under operating leases

Operating Leases

AL 31 August 2024 the total of the Academy’s fulure minimum lease payments under non-cancellable cperating leases was:

2024 2023
[ £
Amounts due within one year 38,423 33,757
Amgunts due between one and five years 72,075 25,887
Amcunts due after five years - -
110,498 59,644
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20

21

Reconciliation of Net Incomel(expenditure) to Net
Cash Flow from Operating Aclivities

Net incomef{expenditure) for the reporting periad (as per the statement
of financial activities)

Adiusted for:

Depreciation charges {note 12)

Capital grants from DIE and other capital income

interest receivable {nole 5)

Defined benefit pension scheme abligation inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (nole 24)
Defined banefit pension scheme finance cost (note 24)
{Increase)/decrease in deblors

Increasef{decrease} in creditors

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust

Inharited assets on conversion

Net cash provided by / {used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DIE/EFA and Others

Net cash provided by ! {used in) investing activities

22 Analysis cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Notice deposits (less than 3 months)
Total cash and cash equivalents
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2024 2023
£ £
2,501,088 1,371,879
598,047 576,353
(2,277.785) {1,355,897)
(306) 217)
(193,000) 241,000
{120,000) (7,000
(772,709) (406,712)
556,125 487,615
291,460 907,020
2024 2023
£ £
306 217
{3,343,922) (1,084,238)
2,277,785 1,355,897
{1,085,831) 271,876

At 31 August

At 31 August

2024 2023
£ £
1,839,122 2,613,494
1,839,122 2,613,494
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending

31 August 2024 (continued)

23 Analysis of changes in net deht

Cash
Cash equivalents
Overdraft facility repayabla on demand

Loans falling due within one year

Loans falling dua afler more than one year
Finance lease obligations

Total
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Acquisifon /

At 1 September disposal of  Mew Finance Othernon- At 31 August
2023 Cashflows subsidiaries lease cash changes 2024

£ £ £ 3 4 £
2,620,953 {781,831} - - 1,839,122
2,620,953 {781,831} - - - 1,839,122
2,620,953 {781,831) . - - 1,839,122
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24 Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceasesto be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before hefshe ceases lo be a member.
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25 Pension and Similar Obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
far non-teaching staff, which is managed by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council, Both are multi-employer
defined penefit pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022.

There were no oulstanding or prepaid contributions at eitker the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Intreduction

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, gaverned by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. AH
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
perceniage of satary - these coniributiens crediled to the Exchequer, Retirement and other pension benefits are
pald by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Governmant Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducis a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensicns (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of fulure contribulions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors, The lalest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2022, The valuation
reporl was published by the Depariment for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT,
applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of the valuation
outcome are:

» Employer confribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% administration fevy}. This is
an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost confrol result is such that no change in member
benefits is needed.

+ Total scheme kiabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cos! of future benefits) for service fo
the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions tegether with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving & notional past service deficit of
£39,800 miltion

The resuli of this vaiualion will be implemented from 1 April 2024.Tne next valuation result is due fo be

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £969,5560 (2023 £747,591)

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the
academy frust has taken advaniage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contribulions fo the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above, the information
available on the scheme,
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25 Pension and Similar Obligations (conlinued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds.

The total contedibution made for the period ended 31 August 2024 was £1,109,000, of which employer’s
coniribulions totalled £864,000 (2023 £784,000) and employees' contributions totalled £245,000 (2023
£222,000). The agreed confribution rates for fulure years are 20.8 per cent for empioyers and between
5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliamen! has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Gevernment Pension Scheme liabitities would be
met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July
2022, the Depariment for Education reaffirmed it's commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary
minute puclished on GOV.UK.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions At 31 August At 31 August
2024 2023

Rate of increase in salaries - Ladywood 3.45% 3.75%

Rate of increase in salaries - Firwood 3.45% 3.75%

Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinfiation 2.65% 2.95%

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.00% 5.20%

The curreni mostality assumptions include sufficient allowance for fulure improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on setirement age 65 are:

At 31 August At 31 August

2024 2023

Retiring today

Males - Ladywood 18.9 18.0
Males - Firvood 175 17.6
Females - Ladywood 23.2 232
Females - Firwood 23.0 231
Retiring in 20 years

Males - Ladywood 19.5 19.6
Males - Firmood 201 20.2
Females - Ladywood 25.0 25.0
Females - Firwood 24.7 24.8
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25 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
The academy's share of the assels in the scheme were:

2024 2023

£ £
Equities 9,923,000 8,409,000
Government bonds 2,335,000 1,979,000
Property 1,021,000 866,000
Cash and other liquid assets 1,313,000 1,113,000
Total market value of assets 14,592,000 12,367,000

The actual refurn on scheme assets was a gain £1,205,000 (2023 - gain £145,000}

Amounts recognised in the statement of financia! activities

2024 2023

£ £
Current service cost 193,000 {178,000)
Past service cost - (63,000)
interest Income 669,000 481,000
interest Cost (549,000} {474,000)
Total operating charge 313,000 {234,000)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £

At start of the period 12,366,000 10,896,000
Upon conversion
Current service cost 671,000 962,000
Past service cost - 63,000
Interest cost 549,000 474,000
Employee contributions 245,000 222,000
Actuarial {gain)fioss (338,000} (3,988,600)
FRS 102 adjusiment §78,000 1,892,000
Benefits paid (86,000) {79,000)
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements 309,000 1,824,000
At 31 August 14,592,000 12,366,000
Changes in the falr value of academy’s share of scheme assets:

2024 2023

£ E

At start of the period 12,366,000 10,877,000
Upon conversion
nterest income 669,000 481,000
Return on plan assels (excluding ne! interest on the nel defined
pension liability) 536,000 {626,000)
Actuarial gain/{loss) - -
Employer contributions 864,000 784,000
Employee contributions 245,000 222,000
Benefits paid (88,000) {79,800)
Plan intreductions, benefit changes, curtailments and setliements - 707,000
At 31 August 14,592,000 12,366,000

As at 31 August 2024, the defined benefit pension scheme has an excess of assets over liabitities of
£3,085,000 (E£1,675,000 for Ladywood and £1,410,000 for Firwood). The academy trust has not
received any formal notification of surplus, either by reduced contributions or refunds. Therefore, this
does not conslilute an assel under FRS 102 and a nil balance is included for this school in the
batance shest at 31 August 2024,
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26 Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the beard of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s fength and in
accordance with the trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement pracedures. The following related
party transaction took place in the period of account.

Woodbridge College - a company in which H Scott {trustee of the trust) is a director
Woodbridge College - a company in which s McFartane (trustee of the trust) is a director

*  The trust agministerad the strategic management of the College and all procurement for the College was
sourced via the trust. For the period to the 31 August 2024 the total disbursements made to the College
totalled £887 795 (2023 - £997,155), of which £135,636 was outstanding at 31 August 2024 (2023 -
£65,630), which has now been paid.

Birch Education Ltd provide peer coaching development sessions to Woodbridge Trust.
During the year, the Trust was charged £200 for peer coaching development sessions (2023: £800).
At the balance sheet date, the amount due to Birch Education Limited was £nil (2023: £nil).

27 Post balance sheet events
In December 2024, the Trust entered into a lease for 12 months totalling £23,400.
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